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MANAGING
TO THE CORE!

Even the most seemingly diminutive of creatures, hold for us an education. They exhibit qualities of organization
that are indeed inspirational. Planning, teamwork and controlling are attributes of a successful and solid
organizational structure. At Atlas Funds these elements form the core of our institution.

Company Profile
Atlas Asset Management Limited (AAML), an Atlas Group Company, was
incorporated on 20 August 2002 as an unlisted public limited company and
is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as an
asset management company for managing open-ended funds and
closed-end funds. AAML is also a licensed pension fund manager to manage
voluntary pension funds.
AAML is a wholly owned subsidiary of Shirazi Investments (Pvt.) Limited (SIL).
As the parent company, SIL sponsors Atlas Group projects. Atlas Group is a
diversified group dealing in engineering, financial services, power generation,
real estate & trading.
AAML strives to be a market leader in providing quality fund management
services with customer satisfaction as its aim, and is consistently committed
to offering its investors the best possible risk adjusted returns on a diverse
range of products, meeting not only the customers current requirements
but also exceeding their future expectations. With its strong emphasis on
systems and controls, quality human resource and backing of Atlas Group,
AAML enjoys a distinct advantage.

Conventional
Solutions

Shariah Compliant
Solutions

Retirement
Solutions

Vision

To be a market leader in providing quality fund management
services with customer satisfaction as our premier goal.

Mutual Funds I Investment Plans I

Creativity

The ability to creatively inspire innovation and the will to foster
positive social and environmental change

Pension Funds

Mission

We are committed to offering our investors the best possible
risk adjusted returns on a diverse range of products, providing
a stimulating and challenging environment for our employees,
and committing to the highest ethical and fiduciary standards.
We firmly believe that by placing the best interests of our
clients first, we will also serve the best interest of our employees,
our shareholders and the communities in which we operate.

Growth I Returns I Tax Savings

Team Work

Giving unparalleled service, creating long-term, win-win relationships
and focusing on executional excellence
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Board of Directors of the Management Company
Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman

Mr. Shirazi is a Law graduate (L.L.B) with BA (Hons) and JD (Diploma in Journalism) Punjab University and AMP Harvard. He served in the Financial Services of the Central Superior Services
of Pakistan for eight years. He is the author of five books including 'Aid or Trade' adjudged by the Writers Guild as the best book of the year and continues to be a columnist, particularly on
economy. Mr. Shirazi is the Chairman of the Atlas Group, which among others, has joint ventures with GS Yuasa International, Honda Motor Company and MAN, to name a few. He has been
the president of Karachi Chamber of Commerce and Industries for two terms. He has been on the Board of Harvard Business School Alumni Association and is the Founder President of Harvard
Club of Pakistan and Harvard Business School Club of Pakistan. He has been visiting faculty member of National Defence University, National School of Public Policy and Naval War College.
He has been on the Board of Governors LUMS, GIK and FC College. Previously, he also served on the Board of Fauji Foundation Institute of Management and Computer Sciences (FFIMCS)
and Institute of Space Technology - Space and Upper Atmosphere Research Commission (SUPARCO).

Mr. Tariq Amin
Director

Mr. Tariq Amin is the Chairman of Orkila Pakistan (Private) Limited, a leading company dealing in chemicals. He is also on the Boards of Pakistan Gum and Chemicals Limited, the Salim Habib
Education Foundation and the Education City. He has varied experience both in private and public sectors. He is a law graduate from the University of Karachi. He also holds a Masters degree
in English from the University of Karachi and a Post Graduate Diploma in Development Administration from the University of Leeds. Mr. Amin has been past Chairman of the Privatization
Commission, Sindh. He has also been President of the Overseas Investors Chambers of Commerce & Industry (OICCI) and also the Chairman of SITE Association of Industry for four years.
Mr. Amin was conferred the civil award of Chevalier De L'ordre National Du Merite by the Government of France 2001.

Mr. Shamshad Nabi
Director

Mr. Shamshad Nabi is a Chartered Accountant by profession. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales and Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
He has also completed his MBA in Finance from the University of Wales in the UK. Mr. Nabi has over 40 years working experience in the UK, Saudi Arabia and Pakistan mostly in asset management
and development banking. He has had a long association with the Mutual fund industry in Pakistan, having served the NIT from 1966 to 1980 including the last four years as the NIT's Deputy
Managing Director. He was the first Chief Executive Officer of the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan from August 2007 to July 2012. During his association with the NIT, Mr. Nabi served on
the Board of Directors of a large number of listed companies including ICI Pakistan Limited, Siemens Pakistan Limited, former Reckit & Colman of Pakistan Limited, Premier Tobacco Company
Limited and Gul Ahmed Textiles Mills Limited besides many others. He has also served on the Board of Directors of the Karachi Stock Exchange. From 1980 until the end of 2002, Mr. Nabi
worked for the Islamic Development Bank in Jeddah, Saudi Arabia for almost the entire period in the Grade of Director in the Treasury & Finance Department, Business Development Department
and the Trade Finance Department. He has also worked for The Citizens Foundation in an Honorary capacity for four years as Advisor. Presently, he is on the Board of Directors of Cherat Cement
Company Limited.

Mr. Frahim Ali Khan
Director

Mr. Frahim Ali Khan has over 46 years of experience in General Management, Finance, Investment and Taxation. He graduated in Commerce from the Karachi University in 1965 and also
obtained a degree in law from the same University. He has also attended the Senior Managers' Program from Harvard University, USA, Financial Management from Stanford University, USA,
and General Management Program from Insead University, France. He joined the Atlas Group in 1967 and has served in different senior positions. Currently, his other directorships include Atlas
Battery Limited, Atlas Engineering Limited, Atlas Power Limited, Shirazi Trading Company (Pvt.) Limited, Atlas Hi-Tech Limited, Atlas Autos (Pvt.) Limited, Atlas Metals (Pvt.) Limited and Atlas
Foundation. Earlier, he has also served on the Boards of Atlas Honda Limited and Atlas Insurance Limited, and has been the CEO of Shirazi Investments (Pvt.) Limited, Shirazi Trading Company
(Pvt.) Limited, and former Atlas Investment Bank Limited.
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Board of Directors of the Management Company
Mr. Ali H. Shirazi
Director

Mr. Ali H. Shirazi graduated in Political Science from Yale University, U.S.A. in 2000 and thereafter completed his Masters in Law from Bristol University, U.K. in 2005. He has worked with the
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi in New York as well as American Honda in Torrance, California. He is an Atlas Group Director, and is responsible for Group's financial services. He is also on the Boards
of Atlas Insurance Limited, Atlas Battery Limited, Atlas Engineering Limited, Shirazi Capital (Pvt.) Ltd., Shirazi (Pvt.) Ltd., Shirazi Investments (Pvt.) Limited, Shirazi Trading Company (Pvt.) Limited,
Atlas Metals (Pvt.) Limited, Atlas Venture Limited, Techlogix International Limited, National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, Ghulam Ishaq Khan Institute of Engineering Sciences and
Technology (as alternate director), and National Management Foundation (sponsoring body of LUMS).

Mr. Arshad P. Rana
Director

Mr. Arshad P. Rana is a graduate from Government College, Lahore; B.S. in Insurance & Economics from Iran and MBA from USA. He is a senior expert in insurance industry and has been
affiliated with Atlas Insurance Limited, an associate company of the Atlas Group since 1991; first as General Manager and then as Chief Operating Officer before being appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the company in March 2004. In his professional career that spans over 35 years, he has worked in Iran, USA and Middle East. Since his appointment to this position, Mr.
Rana has been managing the company affairs with a professional approach having the vision to make Atlas Insurance Limited as one of the best performing companies in the market. Under
his leadership, Atlas Insurance Limited has won several awards in the financial sector. Mr. Rana has been the Chairman, Insurance Association of Pakistan (IAP), Lahore Regional Committee
in 2002-2003 and Vice Chairman, Central Committee (IAP) in the year 2004-2005 prior to becoming the Chairman, Insurance Association of Pakistan in 2005-2006.

Mr. M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. M. Habib-ur-Rahman is an FCA from the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England & Wales and has attended the management level programme (PMD) from Harvard Business School,
USA. He has been a founding member and past Chairman / Director of the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan. He played an instrumental role in setting up the first open-end mutual fund in
the private sector in Pakistan. He has been SECPs nominee on the Board of Karachi Stock Exchange in 2000, 2001, & 2003, and has also been a member of the Commission's Advisory Group
on Capital Markets, and the Commission's Enquiry Committee on management of Exposure Rules by KSE / LSE.

Give your SAVINGS the
ATLAS ASSET BENEFIT!
Growth I Returns I Tax Savings
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Chairman's Review
It is my pleasure to present to you the Annual Reports of Atlas Pension Fund (APF) and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF) for the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

THE ECONOMY
The economy of Pakistan has showed strong performance in FY 2015-16 with real GDP growing at 4.71% during the year which is the highest in eight years despite lower
agricultural growth on account of notable decline in cotton production. CPI inflation for the FY 2015-16 averaged at 2.86% against 4.53% recorded in financial year
2014-15. The SBP reduced Discount Rate (DR) by 25bps in May-16 to stand at historic low of 6.25% (Policy Rate 5.75%). This was the second time during the year after
50bps cut in Sep-15 review to 6.5% (Policy Rate 6.00%). The expansionary monetary policy stance by SBP has seen increased expansion in credit to private sector.
Exports during FY 2015-16 were US$ 20.80 billion as compared to US$ 23.67 billion in FY 2014-15. Imports declined by 2.32% and stood at US$ 44.77 billion during
FY 2015-16. The current account deficit stood at US$ 2.53 billion in FY 2015-16 as compared to a deficit of US$ 2.71 billion in the FY 2014-15 mainly due to CSF inflows,
growth in worker's remittances and lower oil prices which reduced import bill. Foreign worker's remittances have increased to record US$ 19.91 billion during the
FY 2015-2016, showing a growth of 6.38% compared to US$ 18.72 billion remitted during the FY 2014-15. Pakistan's foreign exchange reserves have increased to
US$ 23.08 billion at June end 2016 compared to US$ 18.70 billion at June end 2015.
CPI was 2.86% during FY 2015 -16 as compared to 4.53% for the previous corresponding year. Both food and non-food item prices increased at lower pace compared to
last year. Low food prices mainly emanated from smooth supply of commodities despite floods, vigilant monitoring of prices coupled with decline in global food commodities.
A growth of 11.69% was witnessed in the M2 (money supply) during FY 2015 -16 as compared to 11.80% growth during the previous year corresponding period.
Real GDP growth for FY 2015-16 stood at 4.71% as compared to a growth of 4.04% in the preceding year. The Agriculture sector growth decreased by 0.19% against
previous year's growth rate of 2.53%. The Large Scale Manufacturing (LSM) recorded a growth of 4.61% against growth of 3.29% last year. The Services sector recorded
growth of 5.71% in FY 2015-16 as compared to 4.31% during the previous corresponding period.

THE MONEY MARKET
The Consumer Price Index (CPI) on average was recorded
at 2.86% during FY 2015-16, as compared to 4.53% for
the FY 2014-15. Prudent fiscal and monetary policies,
stability in exchange rate, smooth supply of commodities
in the market and monitoring of prices both at federal and
provincial level along with fall in global commodity prices
helped in moderating the headline inflation (CPI) and
other inflationary indicators. The government has also
passed on the benefits of lower oil prices to domestic
consumers which helped in bringing the stability in prices
of commodities of the CPI basket. The growth in money
supply (M2) witnessed an increase of 11.69% during
2015-16 to stand at Rs.1,319.2 billion against the
expansion of 11.80% (Rs.1,176.4 billion) in the comparable
period last year.
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Net Foreign Assets (NFA) witnessed expansion of Rs.105.2 billion during 2015-16 as against the net expansion of Rs.222.3 billion in the comparable period of
fiscal year 2014-15. Increase in NFA during the current fiscal year was mainly due to improvement in Current Account Deficit, multi-lateral inflows excluding IMF and decline
in imports stemming from lower international commodities' prices. Net Domestic Asset (NDA) of Banking system grew by 9.38% or Rs.982 billion against an increase of
8.98% or Rs.842 billion during the corresponding period last year stemming from a blend of high government borrowings from scheduled banks and retirement of borrowings
earlier obtained from the SBP. Credit to Private sector was Rs.264 billion during 2015-16 against credit of Rs.138 billion during 2014-15 due to lower interest rate regime,
increased economic activity and better energy and law & order situation.
Monetary policy has largely been accommodative on the back of favorable macroeconomic environment which included uptick in real GDP growth, decline in headline
CPI inflation, stability in external sector including all time high level of the country's FX reserves, contained fiscal deficit due to revenue mobilization, government efforts to
substitute its borrowing from SBP to commercial banks and successful completion of eleven reviews under Extended Fund Facility (EFF). Pakistan's foreign exchange
reserves have increased to USD 23.08 billion at June end 2016 compared to USD 18.70 billion at the end-June 2015. The rise is mainly due to loans from ADB and World
Bank, Coalition Support Fund (CSF) as well as disbursement of loans under Extended Fund Facility (EFF) by IMF and higher investment inflows. It is important to mention
here that the increase in the reserves was largely attributed to rise in the reserves held by SBP. On the other hand, reserves held by commercial banks were almost stagnant
during the period under review. On the back of better macroeconomic indicators and environment, SBP has adopted an accommodative monetary policy stance. Previously
policy rate was reduced by 50 bps to 6% in September 2015. Policy rate remained unchanged at 6% in subsequent monetary policy meetings held in November 2015,
January 2016 and April 2016. The realization of monetary easing witnessed in pickup of economic activities supported SBP's decision to further reduce the policy rate by
25 bps from 6% to 5.75 percent w.e.f. 21 May 2016 which is the lowest rate in last 44 years reflecting improved macro-economic conditions towards the end of
Fiscal Year 2016.

THE STOCK MARKET
The KSE-100 index increased from 34,398.86 points as on 30 June 2015 to 37,783.54 points as on 30 June 2016, increased by 9.84%. The average volumes during the
year decreased by 5.28% to 208 million shares from 220 million shares traded last year. Net Foreign portfolio outflow during the year was recorded at US$ 282 million
compared to inflow of US$ 39 million last year. On the local front NBFCs were the most active participant investing US$ 188 million during the period. Moreover, Individual
investors and Mutual Funds invested US$126 million and US$ 43 million in the stock market, respectively. Companies, on the other hand, reduced their exposure in the
equity market by US$ 83 million.
During the period the sectors that outperformed the market were
Pharmaceuticals, Cements and General Industries that posted 37%,
24% and 16% return, respectively. Pharmaceutical sector performed on
the back of increase in drug prices during the year having a favorable
impact on the margins of the companies. Moreover, cement sector
performed on better earnings outlook as dispatches increased by 9.8%
during the year, while cost of inputs, coal and electricity prices remain
subdued during the period.
Sectors that remained subdued were Food Producers, Fertilizer, Oil &
Gas, Commercial Banks and Automobile & Parts posting -11%, -7%,
-7%, -3% and -2% returns, respectively. International Urea prices declined
by 35% during the year from USD292/ton in June 2015 to USD191/ton
in June 2016, that resulted in reduced discount of local price over imported
price. Moreover, fall in international commodity prices have resulted in
poor farm economics eroding the buying power of farmers.

9

Atlas Pensions Annual Report 2016

Thus the urea manufacturers were forced to sell their product at a discount eroding the bottom-line of fertilizer companies. Oil & Gas sector decreased owing to decline in
international oil prices from an average of US$ 71/barrel in FY15 to average of US$ 40/barrel in FY16, a decline of 35%. Banks remained under pressure due to monetary
easing of 75bps during the period that further dented the spreads of banking industry. Automobile sector remained under pressure due to strengthening of JPY against
PKR, which appreciated 23% during the period, and increase in steel prices that would negatively impact the margins of auto manufacturers.
Three new companies were listed on the stock exchange during the period, namely, Al Shaheer Corporation Limited, Amreli Steels Limited and Hi-Tech Lubricants Limited.
Secondary offerings during the year were as follows: Engro Corporation sold 295 million shares of Engro Fertilizers Limited to local and foreign institutional investors and
high net worth individuals during the year at a total value of approximately US$ 184 million. During the year Public announcement of Intention was made by FrieslandCampina
International Holding BV to acquire up to 51% of voting shares of Engro Foods Limited. Pakistan stands to receive US$ 445 million in foreign exchange if the deal is completed.
Similarly, shareholders of Hascol sold 18.1 million shares for US$ 28 million to Vitol Dubai Limited, a global energy and commodity trading company.
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI), the US equity indices provider, has included Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) in its benchmark Emerging Market (EM)
index. The MSCI Pakistan Index will be reclassified to emerging markets status, coinciding with the May 2017 semi-annual index review, hence, PSX would be inducted in
the EM Index in June 2017. The MSCI document said Pakistan stocks will have a potential weight of 0.19 percent in the emerging market, while, currently Pakistan's weight
in the MSCI Frontier Market (FM) Index is 8.9 percent. EM is a market of over a trillion dollars which is substantially higher than FM. This could attract foreign flows much
higher than the outflows expected from the FM players.
The government in its budget announcement reduced corporate tax rate for non-banking companies to 31% from 32% for Tax Year 2017, while it is envisioned to be brought
down by 1% to 30% by next year. However, one time Super Tax, introduced at 3% on profit for Tax Year 2015, was extended for another year and is also applicable for the
tax year 2016. Tax credit duration has been increased from 1 year to 2 years on new listing which would encourage private companies to raise capital from equity market.

THE COMMODITY MARKET
Spot Gold prices / ounce have increased from US$ 1,172.24 as on 30 June 2015 to US$ 1,322.15 as on 30 June 2016, showing an increment of 12.8%. Spot Gold prices
increased during FY 2015-16 as investors rushed towards safe havens and exited risky investments after United Kingdom (UK) voters surprised the world by voting to exit
the European Union (EU). Market anticipates both the UK and the EU will likely see weaker growth going forward with central banks trying their best to support markets.
Furthermore, investors all but ruled out an U.S. interest rate hike during the year following dismal U.S. employment data. Consequently, U.S. dollar declined which dampened
optimism over the strength of the U.S. economy. Support also came in the form of weaker economic data and stock markets around the world. During the year,
Bank of Japan decided not adding additional stimulus to its economy. As a result of the decision, the Yen posted substantial gains against the dollar.
Inflows into ETFs (SPDR Gold Shares) witnessed growth of 33.5% during the fiscal year as sentiment towards gold improved markedly. Shifts in the global economic and
financial landscape have created a positive environment for gold investment in recent months. Uncertainty abounds: (1) the Negative Interest Rate Policies (NIRP) implemented
by central banks in Japan and Europe represent a shift to 'unconventional policies' which create 'great uncertainty'; (2) China's devaluation of the yuan fueled fears over
the country's economic health and the potential impact on global growth; and (3) the pace of US interest rate rises is now widely expected to slow. First half of 2016 witnessed
that the jewellery demand from India considerably reduced on the back of widespread strikes across their jewellery industry. This was caused by budgetary increase in
custom and excise duties on gold bars along with tax on jewellery manufacturing. Jewellery demand from China slowed down on the back of economic slowdown. Central
banks across the globe continued to purchase gold as diversification which became a growing theme.
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FUND OPERATIONS - ATLAS PENSION FUND (APF)
The Net Asset Value of APF - Equity Sub Fund (ESF) increased by 4.50% from Rs.381.30 as on 30 June 2015 to Rs.398.44 as on 30 June 2016. The APF- Equity Sub
Fund mainly invested in Oil & Gas Exploration, Commercial Banks, Cement and Fertilizers sectors. The Net Asset Values of APF - Debt Sub Fund (DSF), APF - Money
Market Sub Fund (MMSF) appreciated by 7.88% and 5.74% respectively, whereas the Net Asset Value for APF-Gold Sub Fund (GSF) increased by 12.92% during the period
under review. The APF - Debt- Sub Fund was mainly invested in Pakistan Investment Bonds, Treasury Bills and TFCs whereas APF - Money Market Sub Fund was mainly
invested in Treasury Bills, short maturity Pakistan Investment Bonds and high yielding bank deposits. APF-Gold Sub Fund was invested 78.3% in Gold Futures and 21.3%
in cash. The Net Assets of APF stood at Rs.895.42 million as on 30 June 2016.
The scheme has maintained provision against Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) liability of Rs.6,016,905 in these financial statements. If the same were not made the net asset
value per unit of the Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund, Money Market sub-fund and Gold sub-fund would have been higher by Rs.4.01, Rs.1.16, Re.0.98 and Re.0.39 per
unit respectively. For details please read Note 11.1 of the financial statements of the scheme. The Scheme has provided for FED liability which amounted to
Rs.1,523,347 (Rs.1.92 per unit) for ESF, Rs.1,124,175 (Re.0.81 per unit) for DSF, Rs.706,273 (Re.0.62 per unit) for MMSF, Rs.207,208 (Re.0.64 per unit) for GSF as on
30 June 2016.

FUND OPERATIONS - ATLAS PENSION ISLAMIC FUND (APIF)
The Net Asset Value of APIF - Equity Sub Fund (ESF) increased by 4.99% from Rs.500.09 as on 30 June 2015 to Rs.525.06 as on 30 June 2016. The APF- Equity Sub
Fund mainly invested in Oil & Gas Exploration, Cement, Fertilizers, Oil & Gas Marketing and Power Generation & Distribution sectors. The Net Asset Values of
APIF - Debt Sub Fund (DSF) and APIF - Money Market Sub Fund (MMSF) have appreciated by 4.23% and 4.21% respectively during the period under review. The APIF
Debt Sub-Fund & Money Market Sub Fund was mainly invested in GoP Ijarah Sukuks and high yielding bank deposits. The Net Assets of APIF has stood at
Rs.785.42 million as on 30 June 2016.
The scheme has maintained provision against Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) liability of Rs.5,769,540 in these financial statements. If the same were not made the net asset
value of the equity sub-fund, debt sub-fund and money market sub-fund would have been higher by Rs.6.35, Re.0.77 and Re.0.89 per unit respectively.
For details please read Note 9.2 of the financial statements of the scheme. The Scheme has provided for FED liability which amounted to Rs.1,611,207 (Rs.2.77 per unit)
for ESF, Rs.1,046,875 (Re.0.71 per unit) for DSF, Rs.644,724 (Re.0.61 per unit) for MMSF as on 30 June 2016.

ASSET MANAGER RATING
The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limtied (PACRA) assigned asset manager rating of Atlas Asset Management Limited (AAML) to "AM2" (AM Two). The rating denotes
high quality as the asset manager meets high investment management industry standards and benchmarks with noted strengths in several of the rating factors.

TAXATION - VOLUNTARY PENSION FUND SCHEMES
1. Finance Act - 2016:
On budgetary measures, the following amendments related to VPS were introduced in the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 through Finance Act 2016.
 Federal Excise Duty (FED) has been withdrawn.
 Additional contribution of two percent per annum for each year of age exceeding forty years shall be allowed upto the 30th June 2019 subject to the condition that
the total contribution allowed to such person shall not exceed thirty percent of the total taxable income of the preceding year.
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2. Withholding tax on Approved Pension Fund:
With effect from 12 May 2015, FBR has required all entities whose income are exempt from income tax to obtain income tax exemption certificates from concerned
commissioner of income tax by virtue of provision in section 159 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance). So far mutual funds and approved pension funds were
automatically allowed exemption from withholding tax by virtue of clause 47(B) of Part IV of the Second Schedule to Ordinance. The Company along with other AMCs
filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court against the new requirement of FBR. However, the Honorable Sindh High Court decided that the requirement of obtaining
exemption certificate will apply to those entities as well whose income are otherwise exempt from tax. Thereafter, the company has filed a petition in the Supreme Court
of Pakistan, on 20 April 2016 a stay order was granted, however the document was received on 13 May 2016.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
Pakistan economy has continued its upward trajectory as economic reforms have progressed and security situation has improved. Inflation markedly declined and the current
account deficit has narrowed with favorable prices for oil and other commodities. Growth momentum is likely to remain assuming continued macroeconomic stability, expected
improvement in energy supply and planned infrastructure investment tied to economic corridor project linking with CPEC. Industrial growth is expected to be driven by low
interest rate regime, strong expansion in construction, utilities and manufacturing. The government is currently implementing a structural reform program to relieve constraints
on growth by improving service delivery in energy and other infrastructure sectors, expanding fiscal space, fostering a competitive business environment, liberalizing trade
and restructuring or privatizing public enterprises. Economic reform and an improving security environment should further boost business confidence and foster private
investment. A sustained reform effort will be required over the medium to long term to boost productivity and potential growth, building on the progress achieved so far.
The Funds are committed to prudent investment procedures and will continue to provide consistent long term returns to the investors.

God, please have mercy on these lovers of clean intention

AKNOWLEDGEMENT
I would like to thank the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Board of Directors, and the Group Executive Committee for their help, support and guidance.
I also thank the financial institutions and the unit holders for their help, support and the confidence reposed in the Fund and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. M. Habib-ur-Rahman
and his management team for their hard work, dedication, and sincerity of purpose.
Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman

Karachi: 29 August 2016
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Directors Report
The Board of Directors of Atlas Asset Management Limited, the Pension Fund Manager of Atlas Pension Fund (APF) and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF) take pleasure
in presenting the Annual Reports of the APF and APIF along with the audited financial statements and Auditors' Report thereon for the year ended 30 June 2016.

FUND SIZE AND OPERATIONS
The Fund sizes, earnings per unit (EPS), and summary of issuance and withdrawal of units of the APF and APIF for the year ended 30 June 2016 in comparison to the
year ended 30 June 2015 are as follows:

Atlas Pension Fund (APF)

Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF)

As per the Trust Deed of the Fund, the income earned by the Sub-Funds shall be accumulated and retained in the Fund.
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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
The review included in the Annual Report deals inter alia with the performance of the Funds for the year and future prospects. The directors endorse the contents of the
review.

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors states that:


The financial statements of APF and APIF, prepared by the Pension Fund Manager of the Funds, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of their operations, comprehensive
income for the year, cash flows and movement in Participants' Sub-Funds.



Proper books of account of APF and APIF have been maintained.



Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.



International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements and any departure therefrom
has been adequately disclosed.



The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.



There is no doubt about the Funds' ability to continue as a going concern.



Key Financial data/ performance table is summarized in notes 21 and 19 to the financial statements of APF and APIF respectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company strongly believes in following the highest standards of Corporate Governance, ethics, and good business practices, which are an integral part of the Atlas
Group Culture. The Code of Conduct of the Company, approved in July 2012, defines the obligations and responsibilities of all - the Board members, the employees, and
the Company towards the various stakeholders, each other, and the society as a whole. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company's website.
The Board Evaluation Committee (BEC) was formed in 2014 to comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, requiring the Board of Directors to
implement a mechanism for the annual evaluation of the Board's performance. The BEC comprises of three members - both the independent directors of which one is the
Chairman, and one member from the sponsor family. The CEO serves as the secretary to this committee. The BEC carried out the Board Evaluation Process.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) & DONATIONS
As per the CSR / Donations Policy of the Company approved by the Board, each year, the Company makes a contribution of 1% of the Management Company after tax
profit to donations. In addition, the Shariah Compliant Atlas Pension Islamic Fund, as per their Constitutive documents, are required to purify their Shariah Non Compliant
(Haram) income from the Fund. Such income, in accordance with the certification by the Shariah Advisor of these funds, is also donated to charitable institutions approved
by the Shariah Advisor, on quarterly basis.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE PENSION FUND MANAGER AND COMMITTEES THEREOF
The Board of Directors of the Management Company comprises of one executive and six non-executive directors. A casual vacancy occurred in the Board during the year
which was filled in with the approval of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, as required by the NBFC Regulations, 2008.
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During the year, five Board Meetings were held and attended as follows:

Serial no.

Name of Director

Status

Meetings attended

Out of total Meetings

1

Mr. Yusuf H. Shirazi

Chairman

4

5

2

Mr. Azam Faruque

Independent Director

5

5

3

Mr. Shamshad Nabi

Independent Director

5*

5

4

Mr. Frahim Ali Khan

Non-Executive Director

4

5

5

Mr. Ali H. Shirazi

Non-Executive Director

5

5

6

Mr. M. Arshad P. Rana

Non-Executive Director

5*

5

7

Mr. M. Habib-ur-Rahman

Chief Executive Officer

5

5

* Mr. Shamshad Nabi and Mr. M. Arshad P. Rana attended one of the five meetings through video conference.
Committees of the Board comprise the Audit Committee, the Board Evaluation Committee, the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee, and the Investment Committee
(which includes executive management personnel as required under the NBFC Regulations, 2008). These meetings were attended by the Directors as per the following
details:
Audit Committee (AC) - four AC meetings were held during the year, and attended as follows:
Serial no.
1
2
3

Name of Director

Status

Meetings attended

Mr. Azam Faruque
Mr. Shamshad Nabi
Mr. Frahim Ali Khan

Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director

4
4
4

Board Evaluation Committee (BEC) - one meeting was held during the year and attended as follows:
Serial no.
1
2
3

Name of Director

Status

Meeting attended

Mr. Azam Faruque
Mr. Shamshad Nabi
Mr. Ali H. Shirazi

Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director

1
1
1

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HR& RC) - two meetings was held during the year and attended as
follows:
Serial no.
1
2
3

Name of Director

Status

Meeting attended

Mr. Frahim Ali Khan
Mr. Ali H. Shirazi
Mr. M. Habib-ur-Rahman

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer

2
2
2
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Investment Committee (IC) - 35 meetings were held during the year and attended as follows:
Serial no.

Name of Director

Status

Meetings attended

1

Mr. Ali H. Shirazi

Non - Executive Director

16

2

Mr. M. Habib-ur-Rahman

Chief Executive Officer

32

3

Mr. M. Abdul Samad
(executive management)

Chief Operating Officer Member IC

31

4

Mr. Khalid Mahmood
(executive management)

Chief Investment Officer Member IC

31

5

Mr. M. Umar Khan
(executive management)

Fund Manager
Member IC

32

6

Mr. Fawad Javaid
(executive management)

Fund Manager
Member IC

32

7

Mr. Faran-ul-Haq
(executive management)

Fund Manager
Member IC

34

Mr.Azam Faruque resigned on 17 June 2016 and Mr.Tariq Amin was appointed as an independent director filling the casual vacancy.

TRANSACTIONS IN UNITS OF THE FUNDS
The Directors, CEO, CFO/Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children have made no transactions in the Fund's units during the year except as disclosed in
notes 18 and 16 to the financial statements - "Transactions with Connected Persons/ Related Parties" of APF and APIF respectively.

AUDITORS
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, in their meeting held on 24 August 2016, recommended the appointment of M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered
Accountants, and Karachi, as auditors of Atlas Pension Fund and Atlas Pension Islamic Fund for the financial year ending 30 June 2017. The Board approved the appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager thanks the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for their valuable support, assistance and guidance.
The Board also thanks the employees of the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee, for their dedication and hard work and the participants, for their confidence in the
Pension Fund Manager.
For and on behalf of the Board
M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Karachi: 29 August 2016
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Fund Managers Report
The objective of Atlas Pension Fund (APF) is to provide the individuals with a portable, individualized, funded (based on defined contribution), flexible pension scheme
assisting and facilitating them to plan and provide for their retirement. Atlas Pension Fund is a one-window facility to invest in diversified portfolio of equity, fixed income,
money market and commodity securities/instruments. The Contributions received from the Participants is allocated among APF-Equity Sub Fund, APF-Debt Sub Fund,
APF-Money Market Sub Fund and APF- Gold Sub Fund in accordance with the Allocation Scheme selected by the Participants.
APF investment strategy is based on the belief that fundamental economic and sector analysis drives long term out performance, and that active portfolio management
can produce consistently superior results than those produced through passive management. Fundamental analysis is used to identify overall portfolio, sectors, yield curve
and credit positioning to provide sustainable rates of return.

EQUITY MARKET
The KSE-100 index increased from 34,398.86 points as on 30 June 2015 to 37,783.54 points as on 30 June 2016, increased by 9.84%. The average volumes during the
year decreased by 5.28% to 208 million shares from 220 million shares traded last year. Net Foreign portfolio outflow during the year was recorded at US$ 282mn compared
to inflow of US$ 39 milliom last year. On the local front NBFCs were the most active participant investing US$ 188 milliom during the period. Moreover, Individual investors
and Mutual Funds invested US$ 126 milliom and US$ 43 milliom in the stock market, respectively. Companies, on the other hand, reduced their exposure in the equity market
by US$ 83 milliom. During the period the sectors that outperformed the market were Pharmaceuticals, Cements and General Industries that posted 37%, 24% and 16%
return, respectively. Pharmaceutical sector performed on the back of increase in drug prices during the year having a favorable impact on the margins of the companies.
Moreover, cement sector performed on better earnings outlook as dispatches increased by 9.8% during the year, while cost of inputs, coal and electricity prices remain
subdued during the period.
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI), the US equity indices provider, has included Pakistan Stock Exchange in its benchmark Emerging Market (EM) index.
The MSCI Pakistan Index will be reclassified to emerging markets status, coinciding with the May 2017 semi-annual index review, hence, PSX would be inducted in the
EM Index in June 2017. The MSCI document said Pakistan stocks will have a potential weight of 0.19 percent in the emerging market, while, currently Pakistan's weight in
the MSCI Frontier Market (FM) Index is 8.9 percent. EM is a market of over a trillion dollars which is substantially higher than FM. This could attract foreign flows much
higher than the outflows expected from the FM players.

MONEY MARKET
The Consumer Price Index (CPI) on average was recorded at 2.86% during financial year 2015-16, as compared to 4.53% for the FY 2014-15. Prudent fiscal and monetary
policies, stability in exchange rate, smooth supply of commodities in the market and monitoring of prices both at federal and provincial level along with fall in global commodity
prices helped in moderating the headline inflation (CPI) and other inflationary indicators. The government has also passed on the benefits of lower oil prices to domestic
consumers which helped in bringing the stability in prices of commodities of the CPI basket. The SBP reduced Discount Rate (DR) by 25bps in May-16 to stand at historic
low of 6.25% (Policy Rate 5.75%). This was the second time during the year after 50bps cut in Sep-15 review to 6.5% (Policy Rate 6.00%). The expansionary monetary
policy stance by SBP has seen increased expansion in credit to private sector.

GOLD
Spot Gold prices/ounce have increased from US$ 1,172.24 as on 30 June 2015 to USD 1,322.15 as on 30 June 2016, showing an increment of 12.8%. Spot Gold prices
increased during financial year 2015-16 as investors rushed towards safe havens and exited risky investments after United Kingdom (UK) voters surprised the world by
voting to exit the European Union (EU). Market anticipates both the UK and the EU will likely see weaker growth going forward with central banks trying their best to support
markets. Furthermore, investors all but ruled out an U.S. interest rate hike during the year following dismal U.S. employment data. Consequently, U.S. dollar declined which
dampened optimism over the strength of the U.S. economy. Support also came in the form of weaker economic data and stock markets around the world. During the year,
Bank of Japan decided not adding additional stimulus to its economy. As a result of the decision, the Yen posted substantial gains against the dollar.
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FUND OPERATIONS
The Net Asset Value of APF - Equity Sub Fund (ESF) increased by 4.50% from Rs.381.30 as on 30 June 2015 to Rs.398.44 as on 30 June 2016. The APF- Equity Sub
Fund mainly invested in Oil & Gas Exploration, Commercial Banks, Cement and Fertilizers sectors. The Net Asset Values of APF - Debt Sub Fund (DSF), APF - Money
Market Sub Fund (MMSF) appreciated by 7.88% and 5.74% respectively, whereas the Net Asset Value for APF-Gold Sub Fund (GSF) increased by 12.92% during the period
under review. The APF - Debt- Sub Fund was mainly invested in Pakistan Investment Bonds, Treasury Bills and TFCs whereas APF - Money Market Sub Fund was mainly
invested in Treasury Bills, short maturity Pakistan Investment Bonds and high yielding bank deposits. APF-Gold Sub Fund was invested 78.3% in Gold Futures and 21.3%
in cash. The Net Assets of APF stood at Rs. 895.42 million as on 30 June 2016.
ASSET ALLOCATION
APF- Debt Sub Fund

ASSET ALLOCATION
APF-Money Market Sub Fund

PIB's ,
45.9%

PIB, 36.8%

ASSET ALLOCATION
APF- Gold Sub Fund
Others,
0.40%

Others, 4.7%

TFC's,
7.3%

Cash,
19.3%

Others,
3.30%

T Bills,
24.10%

Cash, 19.5%

T Bills,
39.0%

Gold / Gold
Futures contract,
78.30%

Cash,
21.30%

The scheme has maintained provision against Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) liability of Rs.6,016,905 in these financial statements. If the same were not made the net asset
value per unit of the Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund, Money Market sub-fund and Gold sub-fund would have been higher by Rs.4.01, Rs.1.16, Re.0.98 and Re.0.39
per unit respectively. For details please read Note 11.1 of the financial statements of the scheme
The Scheme has provided for Federal Excise Duty (FED) liability which amounted to Rs.1,523,347 (Rs.1.92 per unit) for ESF, Rs.1,124,175 (Rs.0.81per unit) for DSF,
Rs.706,273 (Rs.0.62 per unit) for MMSF and Rs.207,208 (Rs.0.64 per unit) for GSF as on 30 June 2016.

ALLOCATION SCHEMES
The management company is offering six allocation schemes including Lifecycle and Customized options. The selection of Allocation Scheme will allow participant to have
a focused investment strategy in accordance with his /her risk profile. The performance of various Allocation Schemes offered under Atlas Pension Fund is as under:

Allocation Schemes
High Volatility
Medium Volatility
Low Volatility
Lower Volatility

Proportionate Investment in
Equity
Debt
Money Market
80%
20%
Nil
50%
40%
10%
25%
60%
15%
Nil
60%
40%

19

Return
FY 2015-16
5.18%
5.98%
6.71%
7.02%
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ALLOCATION SCHEMES HISTORICAL PERFORMANCE:

During the year under review, the Investment Committee held thirty five meetings to review investment of the Fund and the Risk Committee held twenty meetings to review
risk management.

Fawad Javaid
Fund Manager

M. Umar Khan
Fund Manager

Karachi: 29 August 2016
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS
Report of the Trustee pursuant to Rule 31(h) of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005
We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Atlas Pension Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that Atlas Asset Management Limited being
the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with the provisions of the
constitutive documents of the Fund and the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005.
Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 5, 2016
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS OF THE ATLAS PENSION FUND
We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)

Statement of assets and liabilities;
Income statement;
Statement of comprehensive income
Cash flow statement; and
Statement of movement in participants' fund

of Atlas Pension Fund (the Fund) as at and for the year ended 30 June 2016 together with the notes forming part thereof.
It is the responsibility of the Pension Fund Manager to establish and maintain a system of internal controls; and prepare and present the financial statements of the Fund in
conformity with the International Accounting Standards notified under sub-section (3) of section 234 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and technical releases issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan from time to time and the requirements of the Voluntary Pensions System Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rules) and the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Pakistan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion:
a)

the accounts prepared for the year have been properly drawn in accordance with the relevant provisions of the trust deed and the VPS Rules including the guidelines
thereunder;

b)

a true and fair view is given of the disposition of the Fund at the end of the year and of the transactions of the Fund for the year then ended in accordance with the
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan;

c)

the allocation and reallocation of units of the sub-funds for all the participants have been made according to the VPS Rules;

d)

the cost and expenses debited to the Fund and apportionment of expenses between sub-funds are as specified in the constitutive documents of the Fund;

e)

proper books and records have been kept by the Fund and the accounts prepared are in agreement with the Fund's books and records;

f)

we were able to obtain all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit; and

g)

Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, was deducted and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of
that Ordinance.

EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

Karachi: 29 August 2016

Arslan Khalid
Audit Engagement Partner
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued...)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN PARTICIPANTS' SUB FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman

28

Atlas Pension Fund Annual Report 2016

Tariq Amin
Director

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
1.1

The Atlas Pension Fund (APF) was established under a Trust Deed executed between Atlas Asset Management Limited (AAML) as Pension Fund Manager and
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as Trustee. The Trust Deed was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
on 8 June 2007 and was executed under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules). The Trust Deed has been amended through the First Supplement
Trust Deed dated 6 June 2013, with the approval of the SECP.The Offering Document has been amended through the First Supplement dated 18 December 2008,
the Second Supplement dated 28 March 2011 which has been further amended on 2 June 2016, the Third Supplement dated 15 July 2013, Fourth Supplement
dated 31 March 2015, and Fifth Supplement dated 4 August 2015, with the approval of the SECP. The Pension Fund Manager of the Fund has been licensed to
act as a Pension Fund Manager under the VPS Rules through a certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Pension Fund Manager
is situated at Ground Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Firdousi, Clifton, Karachi.

1.2

The objective of Atlas Pension Fund (APF) is to provide individuals with a portable, individualised, funded (based on defined contribution) and flexible pension
scheme assisting and facilitating them to plan and provide for their retirement. The Fund operates under an umbrella structure and is composed of Sub-Funds,
each being a collective investment scheme.
Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the Fund.

1.3

In June 2013, the Pension Fund Manager obtained approval from the SECP for the establishment of a fourth sub fund, the APF - Gold Sub Fund. The APF- Gold
Sub Fund was established under the First Supplement Trust Deed executed on 6 June 2013 between AAML as the Pension Fund Manager and the CDC as the
Trustee. The First Supplemental Trust Deed was approved by the SECP under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) vide letter no.9(1)SEC/SCD/PW
AAML-01/536 dated 14 June 2013, and the core investment of Rs.30 million by the Pension Fund Manager was invested on 28 June 2013. Approval of the
3rd Supplemental Offering Document of the Fund was received on 15 July 2013 from the SECP, whereafter, the APF - GSF was launched for public subsription
w.e.f. 16 July 2013.

1.4

At present, the Fund consists of the following four Sub-Funds:
APF - Equity Sub-Fund (APF - ESF)
The objective of APF - ESF is to achieve long term capital growth. APF - ESF shall invest primarily in equity securities, with a minimum investment of 90% of its
net asset value in listed shares.
APF - Debt Sub-Fund (APF - DSF)
The objective of APF - DSF is to provide income along with capital preservation. APF - DSF shall invest primarily in tradable debt securities with the weighted
average duration of the investment portfolio of the Sub-Fund not exceeding five years.
APF - Money Market Sub-Fund (APF - MMSF)
The objective of APF - MMSF is to provide regular income along with capital preservation. APF - MMSF shall invest primarily in short term debt securities with
the weighted average time to maturity of net assets of the Sub-Fund not exceeding ninety days.
APF - Gold Sub-Fund (APF - GSF)
The objective of APF - GSF is to provide the capital appreciation through investment in Gold or Gold futures contracts traded on the Pakistan Mercantile Exchange
Limited.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
1.5

The Sub-Funds' units of APF - ESF, APF - DSF and APF - MMSF are issued against contributions by the eligible participants on a continuous basis since
28 June 2007 and units of APF - GSF w.e.f. 16 July 2013 and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the Fund.
The participants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribution amount subject to the minimum limit fixed by the Pension Fund Manager. Such contributions
received from the participants are allocated among the Sub-Funds, in accordance with their respective preferences and in line with the prescribed allocation policy.
The units held by the participants in the Sub-Funds can be redeemed on or before their retirement and in case of disability or death subject to conditions laid down
in the Offering Document, VPS Rules and the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. According to the Trust Deed, there shall be no distribution from the Sub-Funds, and
all income earned by the Sub-Funds shall be accumulated and retained in the Fund.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1

Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards
comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) and the directives issued by the Securities
and the Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Wherever the requirements of the Trust Deed, the VPS Rules or the directives issued by the SECP differ with
the requirements of IFRSs, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the VPS Rules, 2005 or the requirements of the said directives prevail.

2.2

New Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
The Fund has adopted the following accounting standard and the amendments and interpretation of IFRSs which became effective for the current year:
-

IFRS 10  Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 11  Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12  Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IFRS 13  Fair Value Measurement
IAS 27  Separate Financial Statements  (Amended)
IAS 28  Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures  (Amended)

Improvements to accounting standards issued by the IASB
IFRS 8  Operating Segments  Aggregation of operating segments and reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments - assets to the entitys assets
IFRS 13  Fair Value Measurement - Scope of paragraph 52 (portfolio exception)
IAS 24  Related Party Disclosures - Key management personnel
The adoption of the above amendments and improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial statements.
Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:
The following revised standards, interpretations and amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective
from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards, interpretation and amendments:
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
2.3 Standard, interpretation or amendment

Effective date
(accounting periods
beginning on or after)

- IFRS 2 "Share-based Payments"  Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments)

01 January 2018

- IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements", IFRS 12 "Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities" and IAS 28 "Investment in Associates  Investment
Entities": Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures" - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

Not yet finalised

- IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements" - Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in
Joint Operation (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IAS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)

01 January 2017

- IAS 12 "Income Taxes"  Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses (Amendments)

01 January 2017

- IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and IAS 38 "Intangible Assets" Clarification of acceptable method of depreciation and amortization

01 January 2016

- IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and IAS 41 "Agriculture" Agriculture Bearer Plants (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IAS 27 "Separate Financial Statements" - Equity method in separate financial
statements (Amendment)

01 January 2016

The Fund expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the financial statements of the Fund in the period
of initial application.
There are certain new and amended standards and interpretation that are mandatory for the Funds accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2016 but are
considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Funds operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
Effective date
(accounting periods
beginning on or after)

Standard
IFRS 9  Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

01 January 2018

IFRS 14  Regulatory Deferral Accounts

01 January 2016

IFRS 15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers

01 January 2018

IFRS 16  Leases

01 January 2019
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
2.4

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where
various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Fund's financial statements or where judgement was exercised in application of accounting policies
principally relate to classification and valuation of investments (notes 3.2 and 5).

2.5

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments have been carried at fair value.

2.6

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise
stated.
3.1

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and short term deposits having original maturity of 3 months or less.

3.2

Financial assets

3.2.1 Classification
The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 'loans and receivables', 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale'. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
a)

Loans and receivables
These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices are classified as held for trading in the
financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' category.

c)

Available for sale
Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as (a) loans and
receivables or (b) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response
to the needs for liquidity or change in price.
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3.2.2 Regular way contracts
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.
3.2.3 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets
carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are recognised in the 'income statement'.
3.2.4 Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets designated by the management as 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale' are valued as follows:
a)

Basis of valuation of government securities
The investment of the Fund in government securities is valued on the basis of rates announced on the Reuters page.

b)

Basis of valuation of equity securities
The investment of the Fund in equity securities is valued on the basis of quoted market price available at the stock exchanges.

c)

Basis of valuation of debt securities
The investment of the Fund in debt securities is valued on the basis of rates determined by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance
with the methodology prescribed by the SECP for valuation of debt securities. In the determination of rates MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of these
securities and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The circular also specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category
as well as the criteria for the provisioning of non-performing debt securities.
Net gains and losses arising from the difference between the carrying amount and the value determined in accordance with the criteria mentioned above in respect
of financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are taken to the 'income statement'.
Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of 'available for sale' financial assets are taken to the 'statement of comprehensive income' until these
are derecognised or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised directly in the 'statement of comprehensive income' are transferred
to the 'income statement'.
Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables' are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Gains or losses are also recognised in the 'income statement' when financial assets carried at amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.

3.2.5 Impairment
The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such
evidence exists for 'available for sale' financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the 'income statement' is reclassified from 'statement of comprehensive income' to 'income
statement'.
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Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of criteria prescribed by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be
reversed through the 'Income Statement'.
As allowed under the directives of the SECP, the management may also make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum provision requirement
prescribed by the SECP, in accordance with a provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors and disseminated by the Pension Fund Manager on its
website.
For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables', a provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount of the provision is the difference between the assets carrying value and present value of
estimated future cash out flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
3.2.6 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
3.2.7 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 'statement of assets and liabilities' only when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
3.3

Derivatives
Derivative instruments that are held by the Fund primarily comprise of gold futures contracts in the commodities market. These are measured initially at fair value
and revalued at each subsequent measurement date at their fair values which is calculated as being the net difference between the contract price and the closing
price reported on the primary exchange of the futures commodities. Derivatives with the positive market values (unrealised gains) are included in assets and
derivatives with the negative market value (unrealised losses ) are included in liabilities in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The resultant gains and losses
are included in the income statement.

3.4

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. They are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.5

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.6

Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under Clause 57(3)(viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, no
provision has been made for current and deferred taxation in these financial statements.
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3.7

Issue, allocation, reallocation and redemption of units
Contributions received from the participants is allocated to the Sub-Funds on the basis of the allocation scheme selected by each participant out of the allocation
schemes offered by the Pension Fund Manager. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of each Sub-Fund is determined at the close of each business day, according
to the procedure outlined in the VPS Rules and is applicable for allocation of units in each Sub-Fund for all the contribution amounts realised and credited in
collection account of the Fund during the business hours on that business day. Any contributions credited in collection account of the Fund after business hours
on any dealing day shall be deemed to be received on the following dealing day and shall be allocated to the units of each Sub-Fund on the NAV per unit determined
at the close of that dealing day.
The Pension Fund Manager makes reallocation of the units between the Sub-Funds at least once a year to ensure that the allocations of the units of all the
participants are according to the allocation scheme selected by the participants.
All Sub-Funds' units are automatically redeemed on the close of the dealing day at which the retirement date falls or death of a participant has been confirmed.
The participant may also withdraw from the scheme prior to retirement. The redemption from the respective Sub-Fund is made on the Net Asset Value per unit
prevailing at the close of the dealing day on which the request is received, subject to deduction of Zakat and withholding taxes, as applicable.
In case of partial withdrawals, units are redeemed on a pro rata basis by ensuring that the remaining units are in accordance with the allocation scheme last selected
by the Participant.
Proceeds received / paid on issuance / redemptions of units are reflected in the Participants Sub-Fund. The Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 specify that
distribution of dividend shall not be allowed for pension funds and return to unit holders is, therefore, only possible through redemption of units which is based on
Net Asset Value (NAV). Hence, the management believes that creation of income equalisation mechanism through separate recording of element of income /
(loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed is not required. The accounting policy followed by the Fund does
not have any impact on the NAV per unit of the Fund.

3.8

Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit
The NAV per unit of each Sub-Fund as disclosed in the 'statement of assets and liabilities' is calculated by dividing the net assets of each Sub-Fund by the number
of units in issue at the end of the reporting period.

3.9

Earnings per unit
Earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the number of units in issue at the end of the reporting period as in the opinion of the
management determination of weighted average number of units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

3.10 Revenue recognition
- Capital gains / losses arising on sale of investments are included in the 'income statement' on the date at which the transaction takes place.
- Interest income on bank balances and term deposit receipts is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Income from government securities is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Income from term finance certificates and sukuk certificates is recognised on an accrual basis, except where recovery is doubtful in which case it is credited to
suspense account as per the directives of the SECP.
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8.1

In accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, the Pension Fund Manager is entitled to receive an annual management fee of 1.50% per annum average of the value of the net
assets of the Fund calculated during the year for determining the prices of the units of the Sub-Funds. The Pension Fund Manager has charged its remuneration at the rate of 1.50%
per annum (2015:1.50%) of the average value of the net assets of the Equity Sub Fund for the year ended, whilst for APF - Debt Sub Fund, APF - Money Market Sub Fund and Gold
Sub Fund, the Pension Fund Manager has charged its remuneration at the rate of 0.75% (2015: 1.25%) and 0.50% (2015:1.00%) and 1% (2015: 1.50%) respectively of the average
value of the net assets of these Sub Funds, which is paid monthly in arrears.
In accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, the Pension Fund Manager is allowed to charge a maximum front-end fee of 3% of all the contributions received from a participant
of the Fund. The Pension Fund Manager has accordingly charged front end fee upto a maximum of 3% during the year / period.

8.2

During the year, an amount of Rs.1,226,516 (2015: Rs.1,430,832) was charged on account of sales tax on renumeration of the Pension Fund Manager levied through Sindh Sales
Tax on Services Act, 2011, and an amount of Rs.1,078,330 (2015: Rs.1,205,884) has been paid to the Pension Fund Manager which acts as a collecting agent.
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8.3

The Finance Act, 2013 has enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management Companies (AMCs) with effect from 13 June 2013.
As the asset management services rendered by the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund are already subject to provincial sales tax on services levied by the Sindh Revenue Board,
which is being charged to the Fund as explained in note 8.2 above, the Pension Fund Manager is of the view that further levy of FED is not justified.
On 4 September 2013, a Constitutional Petition has been filed in Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) jointly by various asset management companies / pension fund managers including
that of the Fund, together with their representative Collective Investment Schemes / Voluntary Pension Schemes through their trustees, challenging the levy of FED. In this respect,
the Hon'ble SHC has issued a stay order against recovery proceedings. The hearing of the petition is pending.
In a recent order of the SHC, all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering
or providing of services (to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) have been set aside. However, as a matter of abundant caution full provision for FED which has been
aggregating to Rs.3,561,003 (2015: Rs.2,352,613) on remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager is being retained in the financial statements of the Fund from 13 June 2013 till
30 June 2016 as the management believes that the Federal government retains the right to appeal against the said order in the Supreme Court within the prescribed timeline.
With effect from 1 July 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by Pension Fund Managers dealing in services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by
the Finance Act, 2016.
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11.1

The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance). As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all
Collective Investment Schemes / Mutual Funds (CISs) / Pension Funds whose income exceeds Rs.0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought within the scope of the WWF
Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a Constitutional
Petition has been filed by certain CISs / Pension Funds through their trustees in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC), challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs / Pension
Funds, which is pending adjudication. However, without prejudice to the above, the Pension Fund Manager has been providing for WWF contribution since the financial year ended
30 June 2010.
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11.1

During the year ended 30 June 2011, a clarification was issued by the Ministry of Labour and Manpower (the Ministry) on 8 July 2010 which stated that Mutual Funds / Pension
Funds are not liable to contribute to WWF on the basis of their income. However on 14 December 2010 the Ministry filed its response against the Constitutional Petition requesting
the Court to dismiss the same. Show cause notices were then issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) to several Mutual Funds (CISs) / Pension Funds for the collection of
WWF, including some of the mutual funds / pension funds managed by the Pension Fund Manager, including the Fund. In respect of such show cause notices, certain Mutual Funds
(CISs) / Pension Funds, including the Fund, have been granted stay by the Honourable SHC on the basis of the pending constitutional petition as referred above.
In March 2013, a three member bench of the Sindh High Court in its judgment on various Constitutional Petitions challenging the amendments brought in the WWF Ordinance,
1971 through the Finance Act, 2006, and the Finance Act, 2008, held that WWF is a tax and consequently, the amendments introduced in the Workers Welfare Fund Ordinance,
1971 through Finance Act, 2006 and 2008 respectively (Money Bills) do not suffer from any constitutional or legal infirmity. This judgment was in contrast to the July 2011 single
member bench decision of the Honorable Lahore High Court which had held such amendments as unlawful and unconstitutional for the reason that they were made through the
money bills.
In a recent judgement of May 2014, the Honorable Peshawar High Court (PHC) has also held these amendments to be ultra vires as they lacked the essential mandate to be
introduced and passed through the Money Bill under the constitution. For the CISs and Pension Funds, the issue of chargeability or otherwise of WWF levy to the CISs / Pension
Funds is currently pending before the Honourable SHC.
In view of the pending decision, the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund, as a matter of abundant caution, has continued to maintain the provision in respect of WWF which amounts
to Rs.6,016,905 as at 30 June 2016 (2015: Rs.4,955,311). Had the same not been made, the net asset value per unit of the Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund, Money Market
Sub-Fund and Gold Sub-Fund would have been higher by Rs.4.01, Rs.1.16 , Re.0.98 and Re.0.39 (2015: Rs.4.13, Re.0.90, Re.0.87 and Re.0.13) per unit respectively.
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18.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES
Connected persons include Atlas Asset Management Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Pension Fund Manager and the directors and executives of the Pension Fund Manager.
The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, carried out at contracted rates and terms determined in accordance with market rates.
Remuneration payable to the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules and the Trust Deed respectively.
The outstanding balances of connected persons / related parties are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.
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18.

TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES (Continued...)

19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

50

Atlas Pension Fund Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued...)
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20.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Fund primarily invests in listed equity securities, government securities, term finance certificates, sukuk certificates and deposits with scheduled banks. These activities are exposed
to a variety of financial risks: market risks, credit risk and liquidity risks.
20.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types
of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
20.1.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Other than APF Gold Sub Fund
which has invested in gold futures contracts denominated in US Dollars, the Fund at present is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are carried out in Pakistani Rupees.
For APF Gold Sub Fund which is exposed to foreign currency risk, which may affect the value of the Sub Fund's net assets due to favorable or unfavorable fluctuations in currency
rates, at 30 June 2016, if the Pak Rupee was strengthened / weakened by 100 basis points against the US Dollar with all other variables held constant, the net income for the
year would have been higher / lower by Rs.282,076 (30 June 2015: Rs.1,489) with corresponding effect on net assets of the APF Gold Sub Fund attributable to the participants.
20.1.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
a)

Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments
Presently the Debt Sub-Fund holds KIBOR based profit bearing Term Finance Certificates and Sukuk Certificates exposing the Sub-Funds to cash flow interest rate risk. The impact
of 100 basis points increase / decrease in KIBOR on 30 June 2016, with all other variables held constant, on the net assets of the Fund and on net income for the year is shown
below:

b)

Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments
Presently the Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund hold Pakistan Investment Bonds and Treasury Bills which are classified as 'available for sale' exposing the Fund to fair
value interest rate risk. The impact of 100 basis points increase / decrease in average broker rates on 30 June 2016, with all variables held constant, on the net assets and other
comprehensive income for the year is as follows:
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The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and rates announced by the Financial Market Association of Pakistan is expected to change over time. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis
prepared as of 30 June 2016 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets due to future movements in interest rates.
Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off balance sheet instruments is
based on settlement date.

Equity Sub-Fund
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20.1.3 Price risk
Equity Sub-Fund
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or currency
risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market.
The Equity Sub Fund is exposed to equity price risk because of equity securities held by it and classified on the statement of assets and liabilities 'at fair value through profit or loss'. To
manage its price risk arising from investment in equity securities, the Equity Sub Fund's investment policy limits investments in listed shares of one company to not more than ten percent
(10%) of its net assets. Moreover, the sector limits have been restricted to thirty percent (30%) of the net assets of the Sub-Fund and investment in listed securities of a particular company
have also been restricted to ten percent (10%) of the paid up capital of investee company.
In case of 5% change in PSX 100 index on 30 June 2016, with all other variables held constant, net income for the year would increase / decrease by Rs.14,789,374 (2015: Rs.12,927,005)
as a result of gains / losses on equity securities classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'.
The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and all the Sub-Funds equity instruments moved
according to historical correlation with the index. This represents the Pension Fund Manager's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the PSX 100 index, having regard to historical
volatility of the index. The composition of the Sub-Fund investment's portfolio and the correlation thereof to the PSX 100 index, is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity
analysis prepared as of 30 June 2016 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Sub-Fund's net assets of future movements in the level of the PSX 100 index.
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Gold Sub-Fund
The Gold Sub Fund is exposed to the future gold price risk because of future gold contracts held by it and classified on the statement of assets and liabilities 'at fair value through profit
or loss'. A decrease / increase of 5% in the quoted price of future gold contracts at the Pakistan Mercantile Exchange would have an impact of approximately Rs.1,477,090
(30 June 2015: Rs.1,246,328) on the net income for the year with the consequent effect on net assets of the Sub-Fund's. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Sub-Fund's commodity
securities at each statement of assets and liabilities date, with all other variables held constant.
20.2

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations and commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to
sell a financial asset close to its fair value. The Pension Fund Manager manages liquidity risk by continuously analysing the maturities of the financial assets and financial liabilities. Since
the Participants of the funds have invested with a long term objective, the possibility of a significant redemption pressure is limited.
The table below analyses the Fund's financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amount in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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20.3

Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter parties fail to perform as contracted. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, credit exposure arising as
a result of dividends receivable on equity securities, receivable against sale of investments, Margin deposits with Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited against future contracts of gold
and investment in debt securities. For banks and financial institutions, only reputed parties are accepted. Credit risk on dividend receivable is minimal due to statutory protection. All
transactions in listed securities are settled / paid for upon delivery using the national clearing company system. The risk of default is considered minimal due to inherent systematic
measures taken therein. Risk attributable to investment in Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds is limited as these are guaranteed by the Federal Government.
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the
Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is mostly concentrated in government securities, future gold contracts and deposits held with a commercial bank.
The table below analyses the Fund's minimum exposure to credit risk other than investment in shares and government securities
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20.3.1 Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty
default rates:

20.3.2 An analysis of the financial assets that are individually impaired are as under:

60

Atlas Pension Fund Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
20.4

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences
can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.
Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake
a transaction on adverse terms.
Fair value of investments is determined as follows:

20.5

-

Fair value of listed equity securities is determined on the basis of closing market prices quoted on the respective stock exchange.

-

Investments in government securities are valued on the basis of average rates of brokers as announced on the Reuters page.

-

Listed and unlisted debt securities, other than government securities, are valued on the basis of prices announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP), as per
the method of valuation agreed with the Trustees of the Fund under the Rules. The MUFAP calculates these prices in accordance with the methodology specified by the SECP. The
methodology in case of currently traded securities, is based on weighted average prices during the 15 days preceding the valuation date and in case of thinly or non-traded securities,
on the basis of discount coupon method which takes into consideration credit risk and maturities of the instruments.

-

The fair value of gold futures contracts is determined on the basis of the closing prices in US Dollars, converted at the equivalent Pak Rupees rates, as announced by the Pakistan
Mercantile Exchange Limited.

-

The fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities of the Fund approximate their carrying amounts due to short term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Fund uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2:

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:

techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.

As at 30 June 2016, the Fund held the following financial instruments measured at fair value:
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20.6 Capital risk management
The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units of Sub-Funds. They are entitled to payment of a proportionate share based on the sub-fund's net assets value per unit on
the redemption date. The relevant movements are shown in the 'statement of movement in Participant's sub-funds'. In accordance with the risk management policies stated above,
the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments avenues while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions. Since the participants of
the Fund have invested with a long term objective, the possibility of a significant redemption pressure is limited, such liquidity being augmented (by short term borrowings or disposal
of investments where necessary). During the year no such borrowing was availed.
All units, including the core units, and fractions represent an undivided share in the pertinent sub-funds of the Fund and rank parri passu as their rights in the net assets and earning
of the sub-fund are not tradable or transferable. Each participant has a beneficial interest in the sub-fund proportionate to the units held by such participant in such sub-fund.

21.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
21.1 EQUITY SUB-FUND
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22.

GENERAL
22.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.
22.2 Corresponding figures have been reclassified, rearranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparison and to conform
with changes in presentation in the current year. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.

23.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager on 29 August 2016.

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Fund Managers Report
The objective of Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF) is to provide the individuals with a Shariah Compliant, portable, individualized, funded (based on defined contribution),
flexible pension scheme assisting and facilitating them to plan and provide for their retirement. Atlas Pension Islamic Fund is a one-window facility to invest in diversified
Shariah compliant portfolio of equity, fixed income and money market securities/instruments. The Contributions received from the Participants is allocated among
APIF-Equity Sub Fund, APIF-Debt Sub Fund and APIF-Money Market Sub Fund in accordance with the Allocation Scheme selected by the Participants.
APIFs investment strategy is based on the belief that fundamental economic and sector analysis drives long term out performance, and that active portfolio management
can produce consistently superior results than those produced through passive management. Fundamental analysis is used to identify overall portfolio, sectors, yield curve
and credit positioning to provide sustainable rates of return.

EQUITY MARKET
The KMI-30 index increased from 57,271.34 points as on 30 June 2015 to 66,162.77 points as on 30 June 2016, showing a growth of 15.53%. The main drivers of return
of the index were HUBC, LUCK, DAWH, ENGRO and SEARL as they contributed 7,347 points to the index and were able to beat the broader index by a huge margin. Net
Foreign portfolio outflow during the year was recorded at US$ 282mn compared to inflow of US$ 39 million last year. On the local front NBFCs were the most active participant
investing US$ 188 million during the period. Moreover, Individual investors and Mutual Funds invested US$ 126 million and US$ 43 million in the stock market, respectively.
Companies, on the other hand, reduced their exposure in the equity market by US$ 83 million. Sectors that outperformed the market were Pharmaceuticals,
Cements and General Industries. Sectors that remained subdued were Food Producers, Fertilizer, Oil & Gas and Automobile & Parts.
Morgan Stanley Capital International (MSCI), the US equity indices provider, has included Pakistan Stock Exchange in its benchmark Emerging Market (EM) index.
The MSCI Pakistan Index will be reclassified to emerging markets status, coinciding with the May 2017 semi-annual index review, hence, PSX would be inducted in the
EM Index in June 2017. The MSCI document said Pakistan stocks will have a potential weight of 0.19 percent in the emerging market, while, currently Pakistan's weight in
the MSCI Frontier Market (FM) Index is 8.9%. EM is a market of over a trillion dollars which is substantially higher than FM. This could attract foreign flows much higher
than the outflows expected from the FM players.

MONEY MARKET
The Consumer Price Index (CPI) on average was recorded at 2.86% during FY 2015-16, as compared to 4.53% for the FY 2014-15. Prudent fiscal and monetary policies,
stability in exchange rate, smooth supply of commodities in the market and monitoring of prices both at federal and provincial level along with fall in global commodity prices
helped in moderating the headline inflation (CPI) and other inflationary indicators. The government has also passed on the benefits of lower oil prices to domestic consumers
which helped in bringing the stability in prices of commodities of the CPI basket. The SBP reduced Discount Rate (DR) by 25bps in May-16 to stand at historic low of 6.25%
(Policy Rate 5.75%). This was the second time during the year after 50bps cut in Sep-15 review to 6.5% (Policy Rate 6.00%). The expansionary monetary policy stance by
SBP has seen increased expansion in credit to private sector.

FUND OPERATIONS
The Net Asset Value of APIF - Equity Sub Fund (ESF) increased by 4.99% from Rs.500.09 as on 30 June 2015 to Rs.525.06 as on 30 June 2016. The APF- Equity
Sub Fund mainly invested in Oil & Gas Exploration, Cement, Fertilizers, Oil & Gas Marketing and Power Generation & Distribution sectors. The Net Asset Values of
APIF - Debt Sub Fund (DSF) and APIF - Money Market Sub Fund (MMSF) have appreciated by 4.23% and 4.21% respectively during the period under review. The APIF
Debt Sub-Fund & Money Market Sub Fund was mainly invested in GoP Ijarah Sukuks and high yielding Shariah compliant bank deposits. The Net Assets of APIF has stood
at Rs.785.42 million as on 30 June 2016.
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ASSET ALLOCATION
APIF- Debt Sub Fund
Placement
with Banks & DFIs,
18.2%

ASSET ALLOCATION
APIF - Money Market Sub Fund

Placement
& DFIs,
37.0%

Cash, 6.2%

Cash,
15.7%
Others,
0.7%

Others,
1.7%

Ijarah
Sukuks,
46.5%

Ijarah Sukuks,
73.8%

The scheme has maintained provision against Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) liability of Rs.5,769,540 in these financial statements. If the same were not made the net asset
value of the equity sub-fund, debt sub-fund and money market sub-fund would have been higher by Rs.6.35, Re.0.77 and Re.0.89 per unit respectively. For details please
read Note 9.2 of the financial statements of the scheme.
The Scheme has provided for Federal Excise Duty (FED) liability which amounted to Rs.1,611,207 (Rs.2.77 per unit) for ESF, Rs.1,046,875 (Re.0.71 per unit) for DSF and
Rs.644,724 (Rs.0.61per unit) for MMSF as on 30 June 2016.

ALLOCATION SCHEMES
The management company is offering six allocation schemes including Lifecycle and Customized options. The selection of Allocation Scheme will allow participant to have
a focused investment strategy in accordance with his /her risk profile. The performance of various Allocation Schemes offered under Atlas Pension Islamic Fund is as under:

Allocation Schemes
High Volatility
Medium Volatility
Low Volatility
Lower Volatility

Proportionate Investment in
Equity
Debt
Money Market
80%
20%
Nil
50%
40%
10%
25%
60%
15%
Nil
60%
40%

Return
FY 2015-16
4.84%
4.61%
4.42%
4.22%
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ALLOCATION SCHEMES HISTORICAL PERFORMANCE:
Allocation Schemes
High Volatility
Medium Volatility
Low Volatility
Lower Volatility

FY- 11
32.72%
23.02%
13.12%
7.39%

FY- 12
25.44%
18.78%
11.99%
8.04%

Return (%)
FY- 13
40.77%
28.34%
15.94%
7.52%

FY -14
21.51%
16.42%
11.35%
7.89%

FY -15
20.56%
14.97%
9.35%
5.71%

FY -16
4.84%
4.61%
4.42%
4.22%

During the year under review, the Investment Committee held thirty five meetings to review investment of the Fund and the Risk Committee held twenty meetings to review
risk management.

Fawad Javaid
Fund Manager

M. Umar Khan Fund
Fund Manager

Karachi: 29 August 2016
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REVIEW REPORT OF THE SHARIAH ADVISOR
As the Shariah Advisor of the Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF), I am issuing this report in accordance with clause 3.12 (iv) of the Trust Deed of the Fund. The scope of
the report is to express an opinion on the Shariah compliance of the Fund's activities.
It is the responsibility of Atlas Asset Management Limited (AAML), the management company of the Fund, to establish and maintain a system of internal controls to ensure
compliance with the Shariah guidelines. As Sharjah Advisor, my responsibility is to express an opinion based on my review of the representations made by the management,
to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified.
For screening investment in equities, I have advised a criteria on the basis of the following: (i) nature of business, (ii) interest bearing debt in relation to the total assets,
(iii) illiquid assets in relation to the total assets, (iv) investment in non-Shariah compliant activities to total assets and income from non-compliant investments to gross
revenues, and (v) net liquid assets per share vs. share price.
As part of my mandate as the Shariah Advisor to the Fund, I have reviewed the following, during the year:
The modes of investment of Fund's property and its compliance with Shariah guidelines.
The process of deployment of Fund's property and its compliance with Shariah guidelines.
The process of purification of income and its compliance with Shariah guidelines.
In light of the above scope, I hereby certify that all the provisions of the scheme and investments made by the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2016 are in compliance
with the Shariah principles.
There are investments made by APIF where investee companies have earned a part of their income from non-compliant sources (e.g. interest income). In such cases, the
Pension Fund Manager, in consultation with me, the Shariah Advisor of the Fund, have determined the Haram portion of the income of the Fund and marked to charity in
order to purify the whole income.

Muhammad Yahya Asim
Shariah Advisor

Karachi: 30 June 2016
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TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS
Report of the Trustee pursuant to Rule 31(h) of the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005
We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (the Fund) are of the opinion that Atlas Asset Management Limited
being the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2016 in accordance with the provisions of the
constitutive documents of the Fund and the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005.

Muhammad Hanif Jakhura
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi: September 5, 2016
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE PARTICIPANTS OF THE ATLAS PENSION ISLAMIC FUND
We have audited the annexed financial statements comprising:
i)

Statement of assets and liabilities;

ii)

Income statement;

iii)

Statement of comprehensive income

iv)

Cash flow statement; and

v)

Statement of movement in participants' fund

of Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (the Fund) as at and for the year ended 30 June 2016 together with the notes forming part thereof.
It is the responsibility of the Pension Fund Manager to establish and maintain a system of internal controls; and prepare and present the financial statements of the Fund in
conformity with the International Accounting Standards notified under sub-section (3) of section 234 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and technical releases issued by Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan from time to time and the requirements of the Voluntary Pensions System Rules, 2005 (the VPS Rules) and the Companies Ordinance,
1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in Pakistan. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion:
a)

the accounts prepared for the year have been properly drawn in accordance with the relevant provisions of the trust deed and the VPS Rules including the guidelines
thereunder;

b)

a true and fair view is given of the disposition of the Fund at the end of the year and of the transactions of the Fund for the year then ended in accordance with the
approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan;

c)

the allocation and reallocation of units of the sub-funds for all the participants have been made according to the VPS Rules;

d)

the cost and expenses debited to the Fund and apportionment of expenses between sub-funds are as specified in the constitutive documents of the Fund;

e)

proper books and records have been kept by the Fund and the accounts prepared are in agreement with the Fund's books and records;

f)

we were able to obtain all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit; and

g)

Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, was deducted and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of
that Ordinance.
E Y Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants

Karachi: 29 August 2016

Arslan Khalid
Audit Engagement Partner
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STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued...)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN PARTICIPANTS' SUB FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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Tariq Amin
Director

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
1.1

The Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF) was established under a Trust deed executed between Atlas Asset Management Limited as Pension Fund Manager and
Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited as Trustee. The Trust Deed was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on
24 July 2007 and was executed on 31 August 2007 under the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules). The Offering Document has been amended
through the First Supplement dated 18 December 2008, the Second Supplement dated 28 March 2011 which has been further amended on 2 June 2016, the Third
Supplement dated 15 July 2013, Fourth Supplement dated 31 March 2015, and Fifth Supplement dated 4 August 2015, with the approval of the SECP, whilst the
Trust Deed has been amended through the First Supplement Trust Deed dated 6 June 2013, with the approval of the SECP. The Pension Fund Manager of the
Fund has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the VPS rules through a certificate of registration issued by SECP. The registered office of the
Pension Fund Manager is situated at Ground Floor, Federation House, Shahra-e-Firdousi, Clifton, Karachi.

1.2

The objective of Atlas Pension Islamic Fund (APIF) is to provide individuals with a portable, individualised, funded (based on defined contribution) and flexible
pension scheme assisting and facilitating them to plan and provide for their retirement. The Fund operates under an umbrella structure and is composed of
Sub-Funds, each being a collective investment scheme.
Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as trustee of the Fund.

1.3

At present the Fund consists of the following three Sub-Funds:
APIF - Equity Sub-Fund (APIF - ESF)
The objective of APIF - ESF is to achieve long term capital growth. APIF - ESF invests primarily in equity securities (as approved by the Shariah Advisor) with a
minimum investment of 90% of its net asset value in listed shares.
APIF - Debt Sub-Fund (APIF - DSF)
APIF - DSF invests primarily in tradable debt securities (as approved by the Shariah Advisor) with the weighted average duration of the investment portfolio of
the Sub-Fund not exceeding five years.
APIF - Money Market Sub-Fund (APIF - MMSF)
APIF - MMSF invests primarily in short term debt securities (as approved by the Shariah Advisor) with the time to maturity of the assets is upto one year, and the
time to maturity of Shariah Compliant Government securities such as Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuks is upto three years.

1.4

The Sub-Funds' units are issued against contributions by the eligible participants on a continuous basis since 6 November 2007, and can be redeemed by
surrendering them to the Fund.
The participants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribution amount subject to the minimum limit fixed by the Pension Fund Manager. Such contributions
received from the participants are allocated among different Sub-Funds, in accordance with their respective preferences and in line with the prescribed allocation
policy. The units held by the participants in the Sub-Funds can be redeemed on or before their retirement, and in case of disability or death subject to conditions
laid down in the Trust Deed, Offering Document, the VPS Rules and the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. According to the Trust Deed, there shall be no distribution
from the Sub-Funds, and all income earned by the Sub-Funds shall be accumulated and retained in the Fund.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards
comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the VPS Rules and the directives issued by the SECP. Wherever the requirements of the Trust
Deed, the VPS rules or the directives issued by the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRSs, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the VPS Rules or the
requirements of the said directives prevail.

2.2

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year
The Fund has adopted the following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year:
- IFRS 10  Consolidated Financial Statements
- IFRS 11  Joint Arrangements
- IFRS 12  Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
- IFRS 13  Fair Value Measurement
- IAS 27  Separate Financial Statements  (Amended)
- IAS 28  Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures  (Amended)
Improvements to accounting standards issued by the IASB
- IFRS 8 - Operating Segments - Aggregation of operating segments and reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments assets to the entitys assets
- IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement - Scope of paragraph 52 (portfolio exception)
- IAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures - Key management personnel
The adoption of the above amendments and improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial statements.

2.3

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective:
The following revised standards, interpretations and amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective
from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards, interpretation and amendments:
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
2.3 Standard, interpretation or amendment

Effective date
(accounting periods
beginning on or after)

- IFRS 2 "Share-based Payments"  Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments)

01 January 2018

- IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements", IFRS 12 "Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities" and IAS 28 "Investment in Associates  Investment
Entities": Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures" - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment)

Not yet finalised

- IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements" - Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in
Joint Operation (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IAS 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures" - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)

01 January 2017

- IAS 12 "Income Taxes"  Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses (Amendments)

01 January 2017

- IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and IAS 38 "Intangible Assets" Clarification of acceptable method of depreciation and amortization

01 January 2016

- IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment" and IAS 41 "Agriculture" Agriculture Bearer Plants (Amendment)

01 January 2016

- IAS 27 "Separate Financial Statements" - Equity method in separate financial
statements (Amendment)

01 January 2016

The Fund expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the financial statements of the Fund in the period
of initial application.
There are certain new and amended standards and interpretation that are mandatory for the Funds accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2016 but are
considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant effect on the Funds operations and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.
Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.
Effective date
(accounting periods
beginning on or after)

Standard
IFRS 9  Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement

01 January 2018

IFRS 14  Regulatory Deferral Accounts

01 January 2016

IFRS 15  Revenue from Contracts with Customers

01 January 2018

IFRS 16  Leases

01 January 2019
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
2.4

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Fund's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where
various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Fund's financial statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies principally
relate to classification and valuation of investments (notes 3.2 and 5).

2.5

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments have been carried at fair value.

2.6

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise
stated.
3.1

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances and short term deposits having original maturity of 3 months or less.

3.2

Financial assets

3.2.1 Classification
The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 'Loans and receivables', 'at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale'. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
a)

Loans and receivables
These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets that are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in prices are classified as held for trading in the
'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category.

c)

Available for sale
Available for sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as 'available for sale' or are not classified as (a) loans and receivables
or (b) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in response to the needs
for liquidity or change in price.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
3.2.2 Regular way contracts
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.
3.2.3 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs except for financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or loss'. Financial assets
carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the 'income statement'.
3.2.4 Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial measurement, financial assets designated by the management as 'fair value through profit or loss' and 'available for sale' are valued as follows:
a) Basis of valuation of Sukuk certificates
Investments of the Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund in Sukkuk certificates are valued in accordance with the methodology for valuation of debt
securities prescribed by the SECP. Under the said directive, investments in Sukuk certificates are valued on the basis of traded, thinly traded and non-traded
securities. Accordingly, investments in Sukuk certificates have been valued at the rates determined and announced by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan
(MUFAP) based on methodology prescribed in the circulars.
b) Basis of valuation of Government Ijarah Sukuks
The investments of the Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund in Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuks are categorised in the 'available for sale' category
and are carried at fair value on the basis of average rates of brokers as announced on the Reuters page.
c) Basis of valuation of equity securities
The investment of the Fund in equity securities is valued on the basis of quoted market price available at the stock exchanges.
Net gains and losses arising from the difference between the carrying amount and the value determined in accordance with the criteria mentioned above in
respect of financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' are taken to the 'income statement'.
Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'available for sale' financial assets are taken to the 'statement of comprehensive income' until these
are derecognised or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognised directly in the 'statement of comprehensive income' are
transferred to the 'income statement'.
Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables' are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Gains or losses are also recognised in the 'income statement' when financial assets carried 'at amortised cost' are derecognised or impaired.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
3.2.5 Impairment
The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence that the financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such
evidence exists for 'available for sale' financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the 'income statement' is reclassified from 'statement of comprehensive income' to 'income
statement'.
Provision for non-performing debt securities is made on the basis of criteria prescribed by the SECP. Impairment losses recognised on debt securities can be
reversed through the 'Income Statement'.
As allowed under the directives of the SECP, the management may also make provision against debt securities over and above the minimum provision requirement
prescribed by the SECP, in accordance with a provisioning policy approved by the Board of Directors and disseminated by the Pension Fund Manager on its
website.
For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables', a provision for impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Fund will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The amount of the provision is the difference between the assets carrying value and present value of
estimated future cash out flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
3.2.6 Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
3.2.7 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 'statement of assets and liabilities' only when there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
3.3

Derivatives
Derivative instruments are initially recognised at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement each derivative instrument is remeasured to its fair value and
the resultant gain or loss is recognised in the 'income statement'.

3.4

Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. They are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

3.5

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

3.6

Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under Clause 57 (3) (viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly,
no provision has been made for current and deferred taxation in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
3.7

Issue, allocation, reallocation and redemption of units
Contributions received from the Participants are allocated to the Sub-Funds on the basis of the allocation scheme selected by each Participant out of the allocation
schemes offered by the Pension Fund Manager. The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit of each Sub-Fund is determined at the close of each business day, according
to the procedure outlined in the Rules and is applicable for allocation of units in each Sub-Fund for all the contribution amounts realised and credited in collection
account of the Fund during the business hours on that business day. Any contributions credited in the collection account of the Fund after business hours on any
dealing day shall be deemed to be received on the following dealing day and shall be allocated to the units of each Sub-Fund on the NAV per unit determined at
the close of that dealing day.
The Pension Fund Manager makes reallocation of the units between the Sub-Funds at least once a year to ensure that the allocations of the units of all the
Participants are according to the allocation scheme selected by the Participants.
All Sub-Funds' units are automatically redeemed on the close of the dealing day at which the retirement date falls or death of a participant has been confirmed.
The participant may also withdraw from the scheme prior to retirement. The redemption from the respective Sub-Fund is made on the Net Asset Value per unit
prevailing at the close of the dealing day on which the request is received, subject to deduction of Zakat and withholding taxes, as applicable.
In case of partial withdrawals, Sub-Fund units are redeemed on a pro rata basis by ensuring that the remaining units are in accordance with the allocation scheme
last selected by the participant.
Proceeds received / paid on issuance / redemptions of units are reflected in the Participants Sub-Fund. The VPS Rules specify that distribution of dividend shall
not be allowed for pension funds and return to participants is, therefore, only possible through redemption of units which is based on Net Asset Value (NAV). Hence,
the management believes that creation of an income equalisation mechanism through separate recording of element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses)
included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed is not required.The accounting policy followed by the Fund does not have any impact on the NAV
per unit of the Fund.

3.8

Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit
The NAV per unit of each Sub-Fund as disclosed in the 'statement of assets and liabilities' is calculated by dividing the net assets of each Sub-Fund by the number
of units in issue at the end of the year.

3.9

Earnings per unit
Earnings per unit are calculated by dividing the net income for the year by the number of units in issue at the year end for each Sub-Fund as in the opinion of the
management determination of weighted average units for calculating EPU is not practicable.

3.10 Revenue recognition
- Capital gains / losses arising on sale of investments are included in the 'income statement' on the date at which the transaction takes place.
- Mark-up income on bank balances and term deposit receipts is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.
- Income from government securities is recognised on an accrual basis.
- Income from Sukuk certificates is recognised on an accrual basis, except where recovery is doubtful in which case it is credited to suspense account as per the
directives of the SECP.
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5.2.2

These securities have been classified as non-performing as per the requirements of SECP's Circular 1 of 2009 read with SECP's Circular 33 of 2012 and accordingly an aggregate
provision of Rs.4,235,000 (2015: Rs.4,235,000), has been made in accordance with provisioning requirements specified by the SECP. During the year ended 30 June 2012, the
Debt Sub-Fund entered into a restructuring agreement with Agritech Limited (the Company) whereby all overdue profit receivable on Sukuk Certificates held by the Debt Sub-Fund
was converted into zero coupon Term Finance Certificates (TFCs). Accordingly, the Fund holds 107 certificates (having face value of Rs. 5,000 each) of Agritech Limited IV as at
30 June 2016. In this regard, the aggregate provision also includes a provision of Rs.535,000 against these TFCs to fully cover the amount of investment. The details of these
non-performing investments are as follows:
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7.1

In accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules, the Pension Fund Manager is entitled to receive an annual management fee of 1.50% per annum average of the value of the
net assets of the Fund calculated during the year for determining the prices of the units of the Sub-Funds. The Pension Fund Manager has charged its remuneration at the rate of
1.50% per annum (2015:1.50%) of the average value of the net assets of the Fund for the year on equity sub fund, whilst for APIF - Debt Sub Fund and APIF - Money Market Sub
Fund, the Pension Fund Manager has charged its remuneration at the rate of 0.75% (2015: 1.25%) and 0.50% (2015: 1.00%) respectively of the average value of the net assets of
these Sub Funds, which is paid monthly in arrears.

7.2

During the year, an amount of Rs.1,130,825 (30 June 2015: Rs.1,299,232) was charged on account of sales tax on remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager levied through Sindh
Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011, and an amount of Rs.994,068 (2015: Rs.1,096,006) has been already paid to the Pension Fund Manager which acts as a collecting agent.

7.3

The Finance Act, 2013 has enlarged the scope of Federal Excise Duty (FED) on financial services to include Asset Management Companies (AMCs) with effect from 13 June 2013.
As the asset management services rendered by the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund are already subject to provincial sales tax on services levied by the Sindh Revenue Board,
which is being charged to the Fund as explained in note 7.2 above, the Pension Fund Manager is of the view that further levy of FED is not justified.
On 4 September 2013, a Constitutional Petition has been filed in Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) jointly by various asset management companies / pension fund managers including
that of the Fund, together with their representative Collective Investment Schemes / Voluntary Pension Schemes through their trustees, challenging the levy of FED. In this respect,
the Hon'ble SHC has issued a stay order against recovery proceedings. The hearing of the petition is pending.
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7.3

In a recent order of the SHC, all notices, proceedings taken or pending, orders made, duty recovered or actions taken under the Federal Excise Act, 2005 in respect of the rendering
or providing of services (to the extent as challenged in any relevant petition) have been set aside. However, as a matter of abundant caution full provision for FED which has been
aggregating to Rs.3,302,806 (2015: Rs.2,188,693) on remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager is being retained in the financial statements of the Fund from 13 June 2013 till
30 June 2016 as the management believes that the Federal government retains the right to appeal against the said order in the Supreme Court within the prescribed timeline.
With effect from 1 July 2016, FED on services provided or rendered by Pension Fund Managers dealing in services which are subject to provincial sales tax has been withdrawn by
the Finance Act, 2016.

8.1

The trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Pension Fund under the provisions of the Trust Deed as per the tariff structure specified below, based
on average annual net assets of the Pension Fund, paid monthly, in arrears:
On net assets:

8.2

- upto Rs. 1 billion

Rs.0.3 million, or 0.15% per annum of net assets, whichever is higher.

- Rs.1 billion upto Rs. 3 billion

Rs.1.5 million plus 0.10% per annum of net assets, on amount exceeding Rs.1 billion.

- Rs.3 billion upto Rs. 6 billion

Rs.3.5 million plus 0.08% per annum of net assets, on amount exceeding Rs.3 billion.

- exceeding Rs. 6 billion

Rs.5.9 million plus 0.06% per annum of net assets, on amount exceeding Rs.6 billion.

During the year, an amount of Rs.150,224 (2015: Nil) was charged on account of sales tax on remuneration of the Trustee levied through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011
and an amount of Rs.136,831 (2015: Nil) was paid to the Trustee which acts as a collecting agent.

91

Atlas Pension Islamic Fund Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

9.1

The Shariah Advisor of the Fund has certified an amount of Rs.166,998 (30 June 2015: Rs.224,229) against dividend income as Shariah non-compliant income which has accordingly,
been marked to charity, out of which Rs.150,199 (2015: Rs. 191,028) has been paid to charities approved by the Shariah Advisor and remaining amount of Rs. 16,799 (2015: 33,201)
will be paid in due course of time.

9.2

The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance). As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective
Investment Schemes / Mutual Funds (CISs) / Pension Funds whose income exceeds Rs. 0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus
rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a Constitutional Petition has
been filed by certain CISs / Pension Funds through their trustees in the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC), challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs / Pension Funds,
which is pending adjudication. However, without prejudice to the above, the Pension Fund Manager has been providing for WWF contribution since the financial year ended
30 June 2010.
During the year ended 30 June 2011, a clarification was issued by the Ministry of Labour and Manpower (the Ministry) on 8 July 2010 which stated that Mutual Funds / Pension Funds
are not liable to contribute to WWF on the basis of their income. However on 14 December 2010 the Ministry filed its response against the Constitutional Petition requesting the Court
to dismiss the same. Show cause notices were then issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) to several Mutual Funds (CISs) / Pension Funds for the collection of WWF,
including some of the mutual funds / pension funds managed by the Pension Fund Manager, including the Fund. In respect of such show cause notices, certain Mutual Funds (CISs)/
Pension Funds, including the Fund, have been granted stay by the Honourable SHC on the basis of the pending constitutional petition as referred above.
In March 2013, a three member bench of the Sindh High Court in its judgment on various Constitutional Petitions challenging the amendments brought in the WWF Ordinance, 1971
through the Finance Act, 2006, and the Finance Act, 2008, held that WWF is a tax and consequently, the amendments introduced in the Workers Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971
through Finance Act, 2006 and 2008 respectively (Money Bills) do not suffer from any constitutional or legal infirmity. This judgment was in contrast to the July 2011 single member
bench decision of the Honorable Lahore High Court which had held such amendments as unlawful and unconstitutional for the reason that they were made through the money bills.
In a recent judgement of May 2014, the Honorable Peshawar High Court (PHC) has also held these amendments to be ultra vires as they lacked the essential mandate to be introduced
and passed through the Money Bill under the constitution. For the CISs and Pension Funds, the issue of chargeability or otherwise of WWF levy to the CISs / Pension Funds is
currently pending before the Honourable SHC.
In view of the pending decision, the Pension Fund Manager of the Fund, as a matter of abundant caution, has continued to maintain the provision in respect of WWF which amounts
to Rs. 5,769,541 as at 30 June 2016 (2015: Rs.5,103,764). Had the same not been made, the net asset value per unit of the Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market
Sub-Fund would have been higher by Rs. 6.35, Re. 0.77 and Re. 0.89(2015: Rs.6.16, Re.0.70 and Re.0.85) per unit respectively.
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16. TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES
Connected persons include Atlas Asset Management Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee, other collective investment
schemes managed by the Pension Fund Manager and directors and executives of the Pension Fund Manager.
The transactions with connected persons are in the normal course of business, carried out at contracted rates and at terms determined in accordance with the market rates.
Remuneration payable to the Pension Fund Manager and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the VPS Rules and the Trust Deed respectively.
The outstanding balances of connected persons / related parties are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.
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17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued...)
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18. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
18.1

The Fund primarily invests in listed equity securities, government securities and sukuk certificates. These activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risks, credit
risk and liquidity risks.

18.2

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types
of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

18.2.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund at present is not
exposed to the currency risk as all transactions are carried out in Pakistani Rupees.
18.2.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rate risk.
Sensitivity Analysis of fixed rate instruments
Presently, the Fund does not hold any fixed rate instrument and is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.
Sensitivity Analysis of variable rate instruments
a) Presently the Debt Sub-Fund hold KIBOR based profit bearing Sukuk certificates (other than Government Ijara Sukuks) exposing the Sub-Funds to cash flow in interest rate
risk. However, as these securities are non-performing assets and have been fully provided for, with their markup being credited to suspense account, this risk is not applicable.
b) As at 30 June 2016, the Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund hold Government Ijarah Sukuks which are classified as 'Available for Sale' exposing the Fund to cash
flow interest rate risk. The impact on 100 bases points increase/ decrease in mark up rates on 30 June 2016 with all variables held , constant on the net income for the year
is as follows:

The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and rates announced by the Financial Market Association of Pakistan for the Government Ijarah Sukuks is expected to change
over time. Therefore, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 30 June 2016 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets due to future movements in interest
rates.
Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on-balance sheet financial instruments is based on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off balance sheet instruments
is based on settlement date.
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18.2.3

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or
currency risk) whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in
the market.
The Equity Sub-Fund is exposed to equity price risk because of equity securities held by it and classified on the 'statement of assets and liabilities' at 'fair value through profit or
loss'. To manage its price risk arising from investment in equity securities, the Equity Sub-Fund's investment policy limits investments in listed shares of one company to not more
than ten percent (10%) of its net assets, or ten percent of the paid up capital of that single company, whichever is lower. Moreover, the sector limits have been restricted to thirty
percent (30%) or the index weight, whichever is higher, subject to maximum of thirty five percent (35%) of the net assets of the Sub-Fund and investment in listed securities of a
particular company have also been restricted to ten percent (10%) of the paid up capital of the investee company.
In case of 5% change in KSE 100 index on 30 June 2016, with all other variables held constant, net income for the year would increase / decrease by Rs. 14,450,509 (2015:
Rs.13,197,901) as a result of gains / losses on equity securities classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss'.
The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other variables held constant and all the Sub-Funds equity instruments
moved according to historical correlation with the index. This represents the Pension Fund Manager's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in the KSE 100 index, having
regard to historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Sub-Fund's investment portfolio and the correlation thereof to the KSE 100 index, is expected to change over time.
Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 30 June 2016 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Sub-Fund's net assets of future movements in the level of the
KSE 100 index.

18.3

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations and commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from an inability
to sell a financial asset close to its fair value. The Pension Fund Manager manages liquidity risk by continuously analysing the maturities of the financial assets and financial liabilities.
Since the participants of the Sub-Funds have invested with a long term objective, the possibility of a significant redemption pressure is limited.
The table below analyses the Fund's financial assets and financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual
maturity date. The amount in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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18.4

Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter parties fail to perform as contracted. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, credit exposure arising
as a result of dividends receivable on equity securities and investment in debt securities. For banks and financial institutions, only reputed parties are accepted. Credit risk on
dividend receivable is minimal due to statutory protection. All transactions in listed securities are settled / paid for upon delivery using the national clearing company system. The
risk of default is considered minimal due to inherent systematic measures taken therein. Risk attributable to investment in Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuks is limited as these
are guaranteed by the Federal Government.
Concentration of Credit risk
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation
to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is mostly concentrated in Government securities.
The table below analyses the Fund's minimum exposure to credit risk other than investment in shares and in Government securities:

18.4.1

Credit quality of financial assets
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty
default rates:
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18.5

Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Consequently, differences
can arise between carrying values and the fair value estimates.
Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to
undertake a transaction on adverse terms.
Fair value of investments is determined as follows:

18.6

-

Fair value of listed equity securities is determined on the basis of closing market prices quoted on the respective stock exchange.

-

Investment in Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuks are valued on the basis of average rates provided by the brokers as announced on the Reuters page.

-

Investment in Sukkuk certificates are valued in accordance with the methodology for valuation of debt securities prescribed by the SECP. Under the said directive, investments
in sukkuk certificates are valued on the basis of traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. Accordingly, investments in sukkuk certificates have been valued at the rates
determined and announced by MUFAP based on methodology prescribed in the circulars.

-

The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities of the Fund approximate their carrying amount due to short term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value hierarchy
The Fund uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:
Level 1:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2:

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3:

techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data.
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18.7

Capital risk management
The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units of Sub-Funds. They are entitled to payment of a proportionate share based on the Sub-Fund's net assets value per unit on
the redemption date. The relevant movements are shown in the 'statement of movement in Participant's Sub-Fund'. In accordance with the risk management policies stated above,
the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investment avenues while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions. Since the participants of
the Fund have invested with a long term objective, the possibility of a significant redemption pressure is limited, such liquidity being augmented (by short term borrowings or disposal
of investments where necessary). During the year no such borrowing was availed.
All units, including the core units, and fractions thereof represent an undivided share in the pertinent Sub-Funds of the Fund and rank parri passu as their rights in the net assets
and earning of the Sub-Fund are not tradeable or transferable. Each participant has a beneficial interest in the Sub-Fund proportionate to the units held by such participant in such
Sub-Fund.

19.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
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19. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (Continued...)
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20. GENERAL
Corresponding figures have been re-classified, re-arranged or additionally incorporated in these financial statements, wherever necessary to facilitate comparison
and to conform with changes in presentation in the current year. No significant rearrangements or reclassifications were made in these financial statements.

21. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager on 29 August 2016.

For Atlas Asset Management Limited
(Pension Fund Manager)

M. Habib-ur-Rahman
Chief Executive Officer

Yusuf H. Shirazi
Chairman
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